



**THE CONSTITUTION  
OF  
NEPA COMMUNITY USA**

**नयाः कश्चिन्ही युवासवा**

**Established: 2018  
Registered: January 9, 2023 DI 23554272**

**THE CONSTITUTION  
OF  
NEPA COMMUNITY USA**  
न्याः कथंनिद्री सुवास

**Contents:**

**ARTICLE 1: THE COMMUNITY**

**ARTICLE 2: THE AIMS AND OBJECTIVES**

**ARTICLE 3: THE ORGANIZATIONAL STRUCTURE**

**ARTICLE 4: MEMBERSHIP**

**ARTICLE 5: RIGHTS & DUTIES**

**ARTICLE 6: MEETINGS**

**ARTICLE 7: QUORUM**

**ARTICLE 8: VOTING VALIDITY**

**ARTICLE 9: ELECTION PROCESS**

**ARTICLE 10: THE FUND**

**ARTICLE 11: CONFLICT OF INTEREST**

**ARTICLE 12 Revolving Fund**

**ARTICLE 13 Membership Privilege Card**

**ARTICLE 14: CONFLICT OF INTEREST:**

**ARTICLE 15: A FINANCIAL TRANSACTION**

**ARTICLE 16: CONSTITUTIONAL AMENDMENTS**

**ARTICLE 17 : RESOLUTION OF DISPUTE**

**ARTICLE 18: DISSOLUTION OF THE COMMUNITY**

# नवाह कश्चिन्तनी समासवा

## THE CONSTITUTION OF NEPA COMMUNITY USA

Established:2018

Registered: January 9, 2023 DI 23554272

### ARTICLE 1 THE COMMUNITY

1.1.1 The name of the Community shall be: “**NEPA COMMUNITY USA**”.

1.1.2 Abbreviated form of the organization name shall be “**NCUSA**”

1.1.3 The Community is a non-profit, public, charitable, educational, history, socio, art & culture Community.

### ARTICLE 2 THE AIMS AND OBJECTIVES:

2.1.1 To provide a democratic forum for the Nepa community USA in-order to freely express their thoughts and ideas, to organize, promote and advance their **ideals, aspiration, history, art ,culture, language, literature, socio-economical, techno-scientific development and sports** for the wellbeing and betterment of the community and its future generation.

2.1.2 To advance the Nepa Community into the mainstream of American Life, for mutual exchange of social, cultural and historical understandings and good-will along with educational and technological ties on one hand, and to foster close and strong ties with compatriots in our homeland Nepal on the other.

2.1.3 To honor the ideals of just and fair democratic values and provide able and effective leadership for the community by enhancing and developing the historical-Cultural, socio-economical, educational and techno-scientific bases of the Community.

2.1.4 To run the all the program of Community. Community will build its' own building in cooperation of Patrons, General Members, Well-wishers and support of local government.

2.1.5 To promote other Newah Organization in the USA and all over the world.

2.1.6 To establish, maintain and promote the relationship with different levels of Local, State and Federal Government.

**2.1.7 Advocate, Coordinate and conduct activities for the upliftment of Newah Communities of USA and all over the world.**

**2.1.8 Raise funds to help victim of any man-made of Natural epidemic, pandemic, or any disasters within the communities as well as for the tangible and intangible socio culture activities of Newah community.**

### Government

### ARTICLE 3: THE ORGANIZATIONAL STUCTURE:

1. 3.1.1 The organizational structure of the Community will comprise of the following bodies:

(a) The General Body

(b) The Executive Body

(c) The Advisory Board

(d) Patron:

**3.1.2 The General Body:** The general body shall consist of all members of the community. It is the main body of the Community. The general body will elect the members of the Executive body.

**3.1.3 The Executive body:** The executive body is a body of elected and nominated members who will carry on the business of the Community and are accountable for planning, managing, monitoring and implementing the basic function of the Community. Executive Board Members should be knowledgeable and committed to promotion of Newah Culture and have 3 years' of active and continuous involvement and working experience with Community.

3.1.4 The Executive body shall be of total thirteen (13) members and comprise of the following:

(a) **Elected Members** – (10) total of 10 members (b) Nominated members ( by President) – (2) total of two members

3.1.5 The offices of the elected members and nominated members along with a Immediate Past President consist of 11 to 15:

- 1 **President**
  - 2 **First Vice President** (Program Development)
  - 3 **Second Vice President** (Public Relation & Operation)
  - 4 **Third Vice President** (Documentation Fund Raising)
  - 5 **General Secretary**
  - 6 **Secretary-** (Administration)
  - 7 **Treasurer**
  - 8 **Co-Treasurer**
  - 9 **Director** (Education)
  - 10 **Director** (Health)
  - 11 **Director** (Art & Culture)
  - 12 **Director**
- And
- 13 **Two Directors will be Nominated by President**
    - a) **Director** Communication and Marketing
    - b) **Director** Property

3.1.6 The term of office of the President shall be of three years duration.

3.1.6.1. The office of the President shall be limited to a maximum of two terms.

3.1.7 The term of office of the Executive body shall be of three years duration.

3.1.8 The office of the Executive shall be limited to a maximum of two terms.

3.1.9 **Patrons:** .

3.1.9.1 **Founding Patrons** The person who has been contributing since the establishment in 2018 to The Nepa Community USA he/she will be honored as a Founding Patron of Community are as follows:

1. Mr. Bijaya Kumar Shrestha
2. Mr. Season Shrestha
3. Mr. Basav C. Rajopadhya
4. Lion Baikuntha Man Shrestha

Founding Patrons will be honored in each and every year's Nhu Dan Newah New Era celebration. Patrons are prior to join the meeting of Executive Board and they will have right to vote too if they wish.

3.1.9.2 **Ex-Officio Patron: After completion the tenure of the** executive board of Community the Immediate Past President shall also become automatically a patron of Community, He/She will be honored in each and every year's Nhu Dan Newah New Era celebration. He She is prior to join the meeting of Executive Board and they will have right to vote too if he/she wish.

3.1.9.1 **Founding Honorary Patrons** the person who has been contributing since the establishment in 2018 to The Nepa Community USA he/she will be honored as a Founding Honorary Patron of Community are as follows:

1. Mr. Ram Malakar, Founding President Of Nepa Pasa Pucha Amerikaye
2. Mr. Krish Ghimir, CEO at Ghimire Homes
3. (Officio) to be honored
4. (Officio) to be honored

The Founding Honorary Patron will be recognized as a celebrity of Community. He/She will be

honored in each and every year's Nahu Dan Newah New Era celebration. Patron is/are prior to join the meeting of Executive Board and they will not have voting right.

### 3.1.9.2 Patrons:

Any member wishing to be a Patron of the Community can do so by paying a onetime donation determined by the Executive Body. He/she shall be called "Patron" of the Community. The Patron will be recognized as a celebrity of Community. He/She will be honored in each and every year's Nahu Dan Newah New Era celebration. Patron is/are prior to join the meeting of Executive Board and they will have no voting right.

### 3.1.9.3 Rights and Duties of the Board of Patron:

- a) Handling the revolving fund of Community
- b) Role plays as an arbitrator committee
- c) Role plays as a think tanker or programmer
- d) Role Plays as Guardian

3.1. 9.4 **Formation of Advisory Board:** Executive Committee will form an Advisory Board as per necessity of Executive Committee. The term of nominated individual board members will be a tenure of executive board three (3) years. Nomination of individuals for the Advisory Board will take place each term. The Advisors will not have voting right.

3.1.10.1 **Ad-Hoc Committee:** General Assembly will be formed an ad-hoc committee community to draft a constitution/by-laws of community and conduct the election of Executive Officer.

3.1.10.2 **Members of the ADHOC committee formed thereafter shall also be known a Founding Members**

1. **President: Bikrant Man Shrestha**
2. **First Vice President: Shreejan Tamrakar**
3. **Second Vice President: Dilip Shrestha**
4. **Third Vice President: Nadim Maharjan (TBD)**
5. **Genral Secretary: Sushan Manandhar**
6. **Secretary: Brajesh Maharjan (TBD)**
7. **Treasurer: Ritu Dangol**
8. **Joint Treasurer: Ujen Jonchhe**
9. **Directotr:**
  1. **Anjita Shresths**
  2. **Bishal Man Shrestha**
  3. **Suresh Shrestha**
  4. **Mahendra Deshar**

3.1.10.3 **The ad-hoc committee** will be dissolved automatically after formation of new Executive Body.

3.1.10.4 The Extended Committee(s): For the purpose of any special occasion, function, and ceremonies or for any other special task, the Executive Committee can form subcommittee(s) of members.

## ARTICLE 4: MEMBERSHIP:

4.1. All Newah individual as well as Newah married with inters caste couple and their own family naturally becomes members of the Community.

4.1.1 Any individual wishing to join the Community can do so by applying to join and agree to abide by the Constitution of the Community. No one shall be discriminated on basis of race, religion, nationality, color, caste and creed or sexual orientation of the individual.

4.1.3 Following are the types of membership:

1. **General Member:** All Newah individual as well as Newah married with the Non-Newah naturally become a member of the General Body and will be called the "Member" of the Community. There shall not be any membership fee for the member of the Community.

2. **Associate members:** Non Newah individual joining the organization shall become the associate members of the Community and shall be called "Associate Member". There shall not be any membership fee for Associate members of the Community.

3. All Registered Voting Members of the Community will be required to pay an annual Registered Voter's Membership Fee \$25.

**Life members:** Individuals who wants to become life member paying a one-time donation \$ 75 Seventy five per individual \$100 one hundred per couple. Then they shall be called "the " Life members" of the Community.

**Founding members:** Individuals who had been involved contributed a lots at the varieties of activities as well as establishment of this Community from the very beginning by paying a one-time donation \$ 99 ninety nine per individual \$149 hundred and forty nine per couple. Then they shall be called "the "Founding members" of the Community. Who does not make payment the donation/dues the person whose name is listed below will not be known as founding member.

There will be (6) sixth months prior to become founding member after call to fill-up Founding Membership pledge (Pledge form will be provided on demand) can fill-up online with the evidence of involvement as well as contribution to strengthened Nepa Community.

The names are listed bellows are the name who has been contributing in various program of Indra Jatra 2018, 2019 and 2021. They are also requested to fill-up the pledge card to become a founding member with paying dues too.

The listed bellows names are not a final list Nepa Community USA can miss the name/names to enlist who has been contributing from the beginning. NCUSA circulates/requests you to add the name/names with the proofs of involvement and contribution in the previous programs of NCUSA. The founding members are being included: (in alphabetical order) as followed.

1. Aaciss Badgami
2. Aakash Shrestha
3. Abin Manandhar
4. Alian Maharjan
5. Amrit Man Sing
6. Amy EB Shrestha
7. Anita Shrestha
8. Anjali Shrestha
9. Anjita Shrestha
10. Anugh Shrestha
11. Apar Shrestha
12. Archana Shrestha
13. Archana Sing
14. Ashish Bhadel
15. Ashmita Avi Shrestha
16. Ashmita Shrestha
17. Ashok Bahdel

18. Ashok Upreti
19. Babita Pradhan
20. Babita Shrestha
21. Baikuntha Man Shrestha
22. Basav C. Rajopadhyay
23. Bidur Dangol
24. Bijaya Kumar Shrestha
25. Bijaya Shrestha
26. Bikash Shrestha
27. Bikrant Man Shrestha
28. Bimesh Shrestha
29. Bishal Man shrestha
30. Bishnu Malakar
31. Bishnu Raj Shrestha
32. Bishop Pradhan
33. Bishwomver Pradhan
34. Brajesh Maharjan
35. Buddha Maharjana
36. Depen Rajbhandari
37. Dewakar Dhaubhadel
38. Dilip Shrestha
39. Durga Prasad Shrestha
40. Ganga Laxmi Shrestha
41. Ganesh Malegu
42. Gangeswori Manandhar
43. Indra Joshi
44. Jaya Shrestha
45. Jayambhu Ranit
46. Jayanti Bhadel
47. Jivan Krishna Shrestha
48. Juulee Rajbhandari
49. Kailash Sing
50. Keith G Pradhan
51. Krishna Prajapati
52. Krishna Prajapati
53. Laxman Pradhan
54. Lakshmi Bade
55. Magan Shrestha
56. Mahendra Deshar
57. Mahndra Pradhan
58. Manohar Shrestha
59. Markandeya Man Sing Pradhan
60. Matina Manandhar
61. Medha Sing Maharjan
62. Meena Pradhan
63. Minu Shrestha
64. Muna P. Shrestha
65. Nabin Mohan Ranjit
66. Nadim Maharjan
67. Nalina Chitrakar
68. Nalina Maleku
69. Nani Shrestha

70. Narayan Shrestha
71. Neeta Shrestha Jonchhe
72. Nina Shrestha
73. Niraj Shrestha
74. Nirdesh Shrestha
75. Nirmala Shrestha
76. Noyan Shrestha
77. Ocean Pradhan
78. Om Bahadur Shrestha
79. Orish Shrestha
80. Pallavi Badgami
81. Pancha Shrestha
82. Prabin K. Tamrakar
83. Pragun Shrestha
84. Prajit Shrestha
85. Prakash Maharjan
86. Prakash Shrestha
87. Prem Krishna Shrestha
88. Purnima Raj Bhandari
89. Pushkar Bikram Prajapati
90. Rajan K.C.
91. Rajesh Lal Shrestha
92. Rajesh Shrestha
93. Raju Joshee
94. Raju Man Pradhan
95. Rakesh Tuladhar
96. Ram Lal Shrestha
97. Ram Malakar
98. Ramesh Shrestha
99. Rani Shakya
100. Ratna Ranjit
101. Ratan Subedi
102. Ravi Pradhan
103. Reena Amatya Shrestha
104. Rita Sing
105. Ritika Swar Manandhar
106. Ritu Dangol
107. Rohini Shrestha
108. Rojina Prajapati
109. Roshan Shrestha
110. Rupa Shrestha
111. Sahajendra Shakya
112. Sandee Maharjan
113. Sanjeep Pradhan
114. Sanju Shrestha
115. Sarina Shrestha
116. Sarishma Amatya
117. Sarita Dangol
118. Sarita Pradhan
119. Sarmila Shrestha
120. Saroj Prajapati
121. Satish Shrestha

122. Season Shrestha
123. Shakti Shrestha
124. Shanti Shrestha
125. Shashi Shrestha
126. Shila Joshee
127. Shiva Raj Joshi
128. Shiwani Shrestha
129. Shreejan Tamrakar
130. Shyam Bade
131. Sudha Pradhan
132. Sugandha Shrestha
133. Suman Sing
134. Sumana Kafle
135. Sundar Rajbhandari
136. Sunita Pradhan
137. Sunita Shrestha
138. Sunjay Dhakhwa
139. Sunjay Shrestha
140. Suresh Pradhan
141. Suresh Shrestha
142. Sushan Manandhar
143. Sushil Acharya
144. Sushil Maharjan
145. Tara Subedi
146. Udaya Shrestha
147. Ujen Jonchhe
148. Yagya Man Shakya
149. Yashoda Gurung Deshar

The rights and privileges of the founding members are the same as that of the member. Only the founding chair can attend at the meeting of executive body if he/she wish too and can cast vote as well.

4. **Life member:** Any member wishing to be a member for life of the community can do so by paying a one-time donation \$100 per individual \$149 per couple and Family Group more than 5 heads 349 more will determine by the Executive Body.. He/She shall be called "Life Member" of the Community.

5. **Honorary Member:** NCU awards honorary membership to those individuals, or organizations e.g. Mr. Ram Malakar, The Founder Chair, Nepa Pasa Pucha Amerikaye, World Newah Organization USA Chapter Newah Organization of America, whose contributions are essential to attain the main objectives of the Community. Honorary members are not eligible to vote however, they can participate in the general council meeting. The executive committee nominates individuals or representative of organizations for honorary membership.

6. **Youth Member:** Individual below the age of 18 (eighteen) who join the Community shall be termed as "Youth members" As a youth member they can learn from members as mentors of the Community and acquire valuable knowledge and experience. As future members of the Community leadership qualities shall be encouraged and developed so that they could assume future leadership role in the Community. Youth members are not allowed to vote.

#### **ARTICLE 5: RIGHTS & DUTIES:**

5.1.1 Rights and duties of the members of the Executive Body and other office bearers:

**5.1.1.1 The President:** The president will be responsible for overall operation of the Community. They shall use every effort to achieve the aims and objectives of the Community. They shall chair the Executive body meeting. They shall form and dissolve committees for various activities as needed for the development of the Community's program. They must see that all the decision made in the committees is made by the majority vote. In case of a tie, they shall cast the deciding vote. They shall see that the records of all activities are kept in proper order according to the constitution and the law of the land.

**5.1.1.2 First Vice President:** They shall assist and help the President in all manners possible. They will be responsible for developing annual program in coordination with the President and other members of the Executive Body. In case of absence of the President for more and a month they shall assume the role of the acting president with full power and responsibility of the President. By order of the President they shall chair various meetings and activities and represent the Community in various venues.

**5.1.1.3 Second Vice President:** They shall assist and help the President and the first Vice President in all manners possible. They will be responsible for developing the public relation aspect of the Community and interact with various other organizations. They shall also oversee the administrative aspect of the Community in conjunction with the General Secretary and Secretary. In case of absence of the President and the First vice President for more and a month they shall assume the role of the acting president with full power and responsibility of the President. By order of the President they shall chair various meetings and activities and represent the Community in various venues.

**5.1.1.4 Third Vice President:** They shall assist and help the President and the first Vice President in all manners possible. They will be responsible for developing the public relation aspect of the Community and interact with various other organizations. They shall also oversee the administrative aspect of the Community in conjunction with the General Secretary and secretary. In case of absence of the President and the First vice President and Second Vice President for more and a month they shall assume the role of the acting president with full power and responsibility of the President. By order of the President they shall chair various meetings and activities and represent the Community in various venues as well as fills responsibility to raising fund for Community.

**5.1.1.4 General Secretary:**

They will be responsible for all administrative activities of the Community and must work in consultation of the President and the Vice Presidents. They shall keep track of all records of all organization activities and paper trail. They shall keep the meeting minutes and circulate it within a week of the meeting. They will call all General and Executive meetings and as advised by the President. They will be responsible for preparing annual report and present it in the annual general meeting. They shall see that the Community is properly registered at the local government and keep it up-to-date.

**5.1.1.5 Secretary:**

They will assist in all manners the General Secretary in fulfilling the objectives of the organizational activities. In case of absence of the General Secretary for more than a month they shall assume the role, duties and responsibilities of the General Secretary. They will also contact various organizations and personnel in developing partnership activities.

**5.1.1.6 Treasurer:**

They shall be undertaking all activities in relation to the financial and monetary aspect of the organization. They shall keep track of all revenue and expenditures records donations and dues etc. They shall present the annual income and expenditures report at the annual General Body meeting of

the Community. They will be responsible for conducting an annual audit and the books are in order with the law of the land. They will be responsible for fund raising activities of the Community.

#### **5.1.1.7 Members of Executive Body:**

All members should attend the executive meeting and participate in a decision making process of the organization, be active and provide intellectual and creative ideas and thoughts to enhance and advance the organization.

#### **5.2.1 Rights and Duties of the members of the Community**

5.2.1.1 The member who forms the main body of the Community has the right to cast vote for electing the members of the Executive Body. He/she shall be called upon to vote for other issues like constitution amendments and other issues. He/she must try their best to participate in person.

5.2.1.2. He/she may appoint a proxy to cast his/her votes but, this has to done as per rules and regulations defined by the Executive body.

5.2.1.3. Voting is the basis right of the members. Each member must exercise this right according to his/her conscience.

5.2.1.4 Only the First Vice President will be eligible for the presidential election. Only the Second Vice President will be eligible for the candidate of First President post and the Third Vice President will be eligible for the Second Vice President and All the deserving voting right member is eligible for the third Vice-Presidential Candidate.

The Second Vice President to become the First Vice President and for the Third Vice President to become second Vice must receive 51% votes to elect of the total casting vote.

A member can be elected or nominated to other various officer of the Community. They must make it their responsibility and duty to participate in the meetings and activities of the Community as called upon by the Executive body for the development of the Community.

5.2.1.5 In order for any members to run for an elected officer they must have participated actively in the Community in various capacities and must have been member of one working committee, Or must be a Founding Member as well as a Life Member. Their candidacy shall be proposed by one founding or life member, seconded by another founding member or life member and endorsed by one of the founding members or life member. The endorsement of founding members shall be required for the first two elections only. No one founding or life member shall endorse two candidates for the same post.

5.2.1.6. Associate members of the Community can participate in all activities of the Community but does not have the right to vote or run for election. However, they may be appointed or nominated by the President in consultation with the Executive Body to serve in any of the committees formed by the Executive Body.

5.2.1.7 Associate members can become a general member (hereafter called the member), if he/she wishes to, after an introductory period of three year. His/her application must be endorsed by three founding members/ life members of the Community and approved by the Executive body. He may thereafter vote and run for office as per article 5.2.1.5

5.2.1.8 The member of the general body shall be the guiding body of the Community to see that the various activities of the Community are in conformance with the constitution of the Community. It is their duty to bring to the notice of all if any article of the Constitution has been violated so that immediate remedial step can be undertaken to rectify the mistake.

5.2.1.9. A voting member can floor the Vote of No Confidence to remove the Executive committee or a member of the Executive committee, or any other committee or individual of office by submitting written petition with signature of at least 10% of the voting members to the general meeting. The Vote

of No confidence has to be approved by 66.66% of the voting members of the organization in order to be implemented.

#### 5.3.1 Rights and Duties of Members of the Advisory Board:

5.3.1.1 All Members of the Advisory Board shall be a source of advice, experience and information for the President, the Executive Body and all other members of the Community. They are only a consultative body and shall not do anything to influence any activities of the Community such as election or other policy matters in direct or indirect way.

### **ARTICLE 6: MEETINGS:**

6.1.1 To carry on all functions of the organization following categories of meeting needs to be conducted:

6.1.1.1.1 Annual General Meeting: The Executive body shall mandatory call one general meeting for all its members every year on December 28.

6.1.1.1.2 Executive Body Meeting: Executive Body must call to order at least four quarterly meeting of its body.

6.1.1.1.3 Emergency General Meeting: The Executive body can call an Emergency meeting of the general body as deemed necessary by the Executive body reflecting the need and urgency of the matter in hand to be discussed for the defense and upkeep of the Community.

### **ARTICLE 7: QUORUM:**

7.1.1 Quorum for Executive meeting: Minimum of 51% of the members of the executive Body must be present in person or by proxy in order for the meeting to be valid. If the Quorum is not reached for the validity of the meeting a second call for the meeting shall be made and at least 33% of the executive members must be present in person or proxy to validate the meeting.

### **ARTICLE 8: VOTING VALIDITY:**

8.1.1. Even though all members of the Newah community are members of the Community, each member has to be registered in order to vote for or be elected to an office.

8.1.2. Member has to be minimum 18 (eighteen) years of age before he can register as a voting member.

8.1.3. Voting by Proxy shall be valid as per rules and regulations setup by the Executive Body.

8.1.4. Voting in the annual general meeting shall be conducted as per majority vote. Minimum of 51% of the votes of the attending voting members must be obtained for any issues to be approved.

8.1.5. Voting for election by mail or by e-mail will also be valid as members come from all over the country. The validity of the mail-in votes will have to be verifiable and confirmed as per rules and regulations setup by the Election Committee.

### **ARTICLE 9: ELECTION PROCESS:**

Every third year the election will be conducted to form a new Executive Body.

9.1.1 The President with the approval of the executive committee shall constitute a fully independent Election Commission of Three Founding Members or Three of the Life Members, three months prior to the election date.

9.1.2 Election commission shall be responsible to conduct a full and fair election as an important part of the democratic practice. The election process should be transparent and fully disclosed and explained to all members of the Community. The Election committee shall formulate all rules and regulation to conduct this fair and democratic election.

9.1.3 The election shall be conducted by secret ballot voting and the detailed result announced by the Election commission.

9.1.4 Vote shall be cast by the registered voting members to exercise his/her basic right. In case of the contested election the candidates will have to obtain at-least 51% of the vote cast to win the election.

9.1.5 In the event of any position of the member of executive becomes vacant; the president shall fill the vacant position by nominating a member from the registered voters. If there is no willing candidate amongst the registered voters, he shall nominate a member from the General Body. If the vacant position happens to be that of office bearer other than a member of executive board, the president shall nominate a member of Executive body to fill the vacant position. If there is no willing candidate, he shall fill the vacant position by nominating a Founding Member or by a Life member .

9.1.6 No membership fee shall be charged to its members. All Registered Voting Members of the Community will be required to pay an annual Registered Voter's Membership Fee \$25. The fee shall be determined by the Executive Committee.

9.1.7 Only the Founding Member and Life Member is eligible to file nomination for a position of the Executive Board/Board of Director.

#### **ARTICLE 10: THE FUND :**

10.1.1 A fund for the Community shall be created to fund by various activities of the Community. e.g. Yearly permanent program of Community with lottery/raffle/50/50 with getting permission of local Government

- Indra Jatra/Yenya Punhi
- Newah Literature Writing Competition
- Cultural Program
- Nepa Bone Kothi
- Gaijatra Humarous Prgram
- Nepa Food Festival
- Kids Tilent Show
- Nepa Traditional Musical Instrument Competition
- World Newah Day
- Publications (Calendar, Souvenir, Literature and books on Newah etc
- Group Janko/Group 75 seventy Birthday

10.1.2 The fund shall be generated from donations received from various members, well-wishers and benefactors of the community and income from various activities and programs undertaken by the Community.

10.1.3 Donation shall be voluntary though solicited and donation drives will be conducted from time to time to meet the basic needs of the Community.

**ARTICLE 12 Endowment and Revolving Fund:** Source of revolving fund is the donation of membership fees of General members, Founding members, Life members and Patrons. Utilization of revolving fund will be only for the emergency period for certain purpose and for certain allocated time frame only. It will be refunded by allocated duration in day and date. The endowment and revolving funds' bank account will be handled by the committee of patron. The committee will approves/sanctions the amount as per the request of executive board. The committee cannot deny giving approval/sanction the requested amount. This clause is just for check and balance as well as to respect the committee of patrons

**Endowment Fund Bank account can be opened either in Nepal or in America for the much more interest to invest in several project.**

**ARTICLE 13 Membership Privilege Card:** The Community will honor by providing business houses' discount a privilege card to following:

- a) Patrons
- b) Advisors
- c) Founding Members
- d) Life Members
- e) Honorary Member

The community will coordinate the interested business houses to become a facilitator to our members providing certain percent discount in their business for product promotion.

10.1.7 Office of Community will be run in Baltimore Maryland, Maryland, USA

**ARTICLE 14: CONFLICT OF INTEREST:**

11.1.1 For proper functioning of the organization, fairness to its' members and to reflect true dedication to the office one holds in the organization the following conflict of interest status shall be observed:

(a) No member of the elected or nominated members of the Executive Body shall hold similar offices in other similar organizations at one given time.

**ARTICLE 15: A FINANCIAL TRANSACTION:**

15.1.1 A bank account shall be opened in the name of the Community and will be operated by the Treasurer, Secretary and the President of the Community. At the beginning the Bank Account will be open by the Resident Agent of Community Charter.

15.1.2 Fiscal Year, The fiscal year of this club shall be January 1 through December 31.

**ARTICLE 16: CONSTITUTIONAL AMENDMENTS:**

12.1.1 To reflect the need, aspiration and changes that occur in the working of the Community amendments of the constitution can be undertaken as and when necessary.

12.1.2 Proposal to amend the constitution can be floored at the annual general meeting by any member of the Community in a written form.

12.1.3 Proposed amendments are to be put to vote to the registered voting members of the Community.

12.1.4 In order for the amendments to be approved a 66.66% vote for the amendments needs to be obtained.

**ARTICLE 17 : RESOLUTION OF DISPUTE** Any disagreement or dispute shall be attended to and resolved immediately. The Board of Patron should initiate action as required for this purpose.

13.1 Disagreement or dispute amongst any member of the Community shall be brought to the notice of the Executive Board by submitting a written deposition for arbitration

13.2 The Board of Patron shall hear the arguments and put forward an amicable resolution in the best interest of all parties as well as the Community, in a fair and just manner.

13.3 The advice or suggestions handed down by the Board of Patron shall be based on the Constitution, but if the issue of the dispute is beyond the jurisdiction of the Constitution, legal advice shall be sought.

13.4 The advice or suggestions handed down by the Board of Patron as arbitration are neither binding nor enforceable by the Executive Board. Only the Executive Board or the Assembly is empowered to take action within the boundaries of the Constitution.

**ARTICLE 18: DISSOLUTION OF THE COMMUNITY** The Community can be dissolved as per local legislation if there is a need for such to take place and all fixed and current assets of the community shall be transferred to the State where the community is registered.

End of Constitution